NHamp 352,07 S85 1974

Report

Annual

OF THE TOWN OFFICERS OF

STEWARTSTOWN New Hampshire

FOR THE YEAR ENDING

1974

INCLUDING A REPORT OF THE SCHOOL DIRECTORS

·



OF THE TOWN OFFICERS

OF THE TOWN OF

STEWARTSTOWN New Hampshire

FOR THE YEAR ENDING

DECEMBER 31



M/S PRINTING & ADVERTISING Colebrook, N. H.

University of New Hampshire Library



Digitized by the Internet Archive in 2010 with funding from Boston Library Consortium Member Libraries

http://www.archive.org/details/annualreportofto1974stew

OFFICERS

Moderator	THEODORE PARISEAU
Selectmen	JOHN D. ANGEVINE PAUL L. PIERCE HAZEN E. BURNS
Town Clerk	LYNNE O. PLACEY
Town Treasurer	LYNNE O. PLACEY
Auditors	FABIANA PARKER GLENNA RANCLOES
Supervisors of Check List	FABIANA PARKER MARION PARRISH NORMA BURNS
Overseer of Public Welfare	BURLEIGH PLACEY
Road Agents	HOWARD CARNEY GARY OWEN
Constable	DWIGHT DWINELL BURLEIGH PLACEY
Tax Collector	EVELYN R. BOHAN
Sexton	J. C. KENNETH POORE
LIbrary Trustees	J. C. KENNETH POORE NANCY ADAMS NORMA BURNS
Board of Health	SELECTMEN ROBERT BURNS
Collector of Diamond Pond Rent .	J. C. KENNETH POORE
Trustee of Trust Funds	J. C. KENNETH POORE

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Officers	2
Warrant	3
Budget	7
Inventory of Town Property	9
Schedule of Town Property	9
Statement of Appropriations	10
Comparative Statement	12
Financial Report	14
Town Clerk's Report	15
Tax Collector's Report	16
Treasurer's Report	21
Summary of Payments	22
Detailed Statement of Receipts	23
Detailed Statement of Payments	26
Town Maintenance	30
Revenue Sharing Fund	34
Flood Disaster Account	35
Stewartstown Manpower Program	36
Cemeteries	36
Financial Report	37
Report of the Trust Funds	39
Stewartstown Hollow Library Report	41
West Stewartstown Library Report	42
Mental Health Service Report	43
School Report	47
Vital Statistics	74

WARRANT

The State of New Hampshire

To the Inhabitants of the Town of Stewartstown, in the County of Coos in said State qualified to vote in Town Affairs:

You are hereby notified to meet at the Town House in said town of Stewartstown on Tuesday, the 4th day of March next, at ten o'clock in the forenoon to act upon the following subjects:

- 1. To see if the town will vote to accept State Aid.
- To raise such sums of money as may be necessary for the support of the poor.
- 3. To raise such sums of money as may be necessary for support of libraries.
- 4. To raise such sums of money as may be necessary for care of cemeteries.
- 5. To see if the town will vote to raise four thousand dollars (\$4,000.00) for street lighting.
- 6. To see what sum of money the town will vote to raise for the following departments:
 - (a) Police Department
 - (b) Fire Department
 - (c) Sewer Department
- 7. To see what sum of money the town will vote to raise for winter roads.
- 8. To see what sum of money the town will vote to raise for summer roads.
- 9. To see what sum of money the town will vote to raise in addition to that required by law for the town maintenance.
- 10. To see if the town will vote to raise one hundred dollars (\$100.00) for Patriotic purposes.
- 11. To see if the town will vote to raise one hundred dollars (\$100.00) for Recreation.

- 12. To see if the town will vote to accept the budget made up by the Selectmen and to raise money for the same. If not, to see what sum of money the town will vote to raise to defray town charges for the ensuing year as follows:
 - (a) Town Officers' Salaries
 - (b) Town Officers' Expenses
 - (c) Election & Registration
 - (d) Town Hall, Office and other buildings
 - (e) Damage and Legal Expenses
 - (f) Health Department
 - (g) Town Dump Expenses
 - (h) Vital Statistics
 - (i) General Expense of Highway Department
 - (j) Civil Defense
 - (k) Interest on Temporary Loans
- 13. To see if the Town will vote to authorize the withdrawal from the Revenue Sharing Fund established under the provisions of the State & Local Assistance Act of 1972 for use as set-offs against budgeted appropriations for the following priority purposes and in amounts indicated or take any other action hereon:
 - (a) Police Department -\$ 2,000.00
 - (b) Fire Department 1,700.00
 - (c) Town Dump 2,000.00
 - (d) Cemeteries 400.00

\$ 6,100.00

- 14. To see if the town will vote to re-classify the road known as thethe Delisle Road from a summer residence road to a year round residence road; and that this portion of the road be maintained year round so as to accomodate Mr. & Mrs. Alfred E. Delisle, both retired and allow them to make Stewartstown their permanent residence. (By Petition) (Non Ballot).
- 15. To see if the town will vote to authorize withdrawal from the Revenue Sharing Fund established under the provisions of the State and Local Assistance Act of 1972, the necessary amount to affect suitable repairs to our existing Town Office and that the Selectmen be authorized to hire those persons capable of making the repairs.
- To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of TWO THOUSAND DOLLARS (\$2,000.00) for the

purpose of investigating the matter of town refuse disposal such investigation may include joining with neighboring towns in the making of such an investigation.

- 17. To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of TWENTY THOUSAND DOLLARS (\$20,000.00) as the town's share of the cost for final sewerage disposal plan design in the cooperative effort with Canaan, Vermont such appropriation being made contingent upon the New Hampshire and Vermont legislatures passing proper enabling and authorization statue so as to properly legalize the cooperative effort aforesaid.
- 18. To see if the town will vote to adopt the provisions of the Municipal Budget Law. (By Petition) (By Ballot) Yes () No ()
- 19. To see if the town will vote to authorize the moderator to appoint six members-at-large as a budget committee. (By Petition) (By Ballot)
 Yes () No ()
- 20. To see if the town will vote to authorize withdrawal from the Revenue Sharing Fund established under the provisions of the State and Local Assistance Act of 1972, the amount of five hundred dollars (\$500.00) to contribute to the Upper Connecticut Valley Mental Health Service, Inc.. (By Ballot) Yes () No ()
- To see if the town will vote to authorize withdrawal from the Revenue Sharing Fund established under the provisions of the State and Local Assistance Act of 1972, the amount of five hundred dollars (\$500.00) to contribute to Convalesce. (By Ballot) Yes () No ()
- 22. To see if the town will vote to authorize withdrawal from the Revenue Sharing Fund established under the provisions of the State and Local Assistance Act of 1972, the amount of five hundred dollars (\$500.00) to support Ambulance District A-1. (By Ballot) Yes () No ()
- 23. To transact any other business that may legally be brought before this meeting.

Given under our hands and seals this 15th day of February in the year of our Lord nineteen hundred and seventy-five.

JOHN D. ANGEVINE PAUL L. PIERCE HASEN E. BURNS Selectmen of Stewartstown

A true copy of Warrant – Attest: JOHN D. ANGEVINE PAUL L. PIERCE HASEN E. BURNS Selectmen of Stewartstown

Revenue Sharing	\$ 2,000.00 1,700.00	4,000.00
Estimated 1975	\$ 4,050.00 1,200.00 1,400.00 2,000.00 1,700.00 4,000.00 60.00	4,000.00 2,000.00 15,000.00 4,000.00 4,000.00 375.00
Spent 1974	 \$ 4,149.00 1,072.70 442.00 953.13 953.13 2,174.11 1,454.81 3,291.80 2,05 3,05 	3,009.91 1,800.00 16,441.30 6,600.81 3,263.98 4,641.91 778.03 329.92
Raised 1974	\$ 4,050.00 750.00 1,400.00 2,000.00 2,700.00 2,700.00	1,000.00 2,000.00 15,000.00 6,000.00 3,400.00 3,000.00 375.00
Purpose of Expenditures:	Town Officers' Salaries Town Officers' Expenses Election & Registration Town & Other Town Bldgs. Police Department Fire Department Damages & Legal Expense Health Department	Vital Statistics Sewer Maintenance Sewerage Project Salaries Town Dump Town Maintenance Winter Town Maintenance Summer Street Lighting General Expense Highway Town Road Aid Special Gravel Brush Fund Libraries

BUDGET

Revenue Sharing		400.00	6,100.00
	↔		Ś
Estimated 1975	\$ 750.00 5,000.00 100.00 100.00	125.00 400.00 1,000.00	\$ 57,460.03 9,500.00 166,491.00 \$233,451.03
Spent 1974	\$ 459.80 5,345.23	125.00 316.00 1,144.40 619.05	\$ 58,497.20 8,020.95 178,335.43 \$244,853.58
Raised 1974	\$ 400.00 5,000.00	125.00 400.00 1,000.00 393.12	\$ 51,363.03 9,500.00 141,489.00 \$202,352.03
Purpose of Expenditures:	Town Poor Old Age Assistance Patriotic Purposes Recreation	Parks & Playgrounds Cemeteries Interest on Temp. Loans Abatements	Town Appropriations County Taxes School Taxes Totals

-8-

INVENTORY OF TOWN PROPERTY

Land Buildings Public Utilities - Electric House Trailers	\$ 539,963.00 1,297,379.00 361,567.00 43,561.00
Total Valuation Before Exemptions Allowed	\$2,242,420.00
Total Exemptions Allowed	32,155.00
Net Valuation	\$2,210,265.00

SCHEDULE OF TOWN PROPERTY

Town Hall and Land	\$ 4,500.00
Libraries	4,000.00
Office Equipment	2,500.00
Parks and Playgrounds	1,000.00
Highway Equipment	500.00
School Houses	63,500.00
School Equipment	2,000.00
¢	\$78,000.00

STATEMENT OF APPROPRIATIONS AND TAXES ASSESSED

FOR YEAR 1974

Town Officers' Salaries Town Officers' Expenses	\$ 4,050.00 750.00	
Election & Registration	400.00	
Town Hall & Other Buildings	1,400.00	
Police Department	2,000.00	
Fire Department	1,500.00	
Damages & Legal Expenses	2,700.00	
Health Department	60.00	
Vital Statistics	25.00	
Sewer Maintenance	1,000.00	
Town Dump	2,000.00	
Town Maintenance, Summer	2,000.00	
and Winter	21,000.00	
Street Lighting	3,400.00	
General Expense of Highway Dept.	3,000.00	
Town Road Aid	778.00	
Libraries	375.00	
	400.00	
Town Poor		
Old Age Assistance	5,000.00 125.00	
Parks and Playgrounds		
Cemeteries	400.00	
Interest on Temporary Loans	1,000.00	
Special Gravel and Brush Fund	250.00	
Authorized Withdrawal from		
Revenue Sharing Fund,	40.000.00	
Tax Map	10,000.00	
Convalesce	1,000.00	
Ambulance	750.00	
Total Town Appropriations:		\$63,113.00
Less: Estimated Revenues & Credits:		
Interests and Dividends Tax	\$ 740.00	
Railroad Tax	258.00	
Savings Bank Tax	743.00	
Meals and Rooms Tax	5,300.00	
Highway Subsidy	11,400.00	
Revenue Yield Tax Sources	1,000.00	
Interest Received on Taxes and		
Deposits	450.00	
Sale of Tax Property	82.00	
. ,		

Business Licenses, Permits and Filing Fees Dog Licenses Motor Vehicle Permits Income from Trust Funds National Bank Stock Taxes Resident Taxes Retained Revenue Sharing (Contra) Duncan Fund	25.00 157.00 16,000.00 125.00 50.00 4,600.00 11,750.00 8,650.00	
Total Revenues and Credits		\$ 61,330.00
Net Town Appropriations		1,783.00
Net School Appropriations		196,583.00
County Tax Assessment		9,500.00
Total of Town, School and County Appropriations Deduct: Reimb. a/c Property Exemp 1970 Special Session Add: War Service Tax Credits Add: Overlay	ted	\$207,866.00 13,000.00 1,950.00 3,500.00
Gross Property Taxes to be Raised		\$200,316.00
Property Taxes to be Committed to Collector:		
Gross Property Taxes Less: War Service Tax Credits	\$200,316.00 1,950.00	
Total Tax Commitment	\$198,366.00	
Tax Rate — 5.55 Municipal — .12		

Municipal – .12 County – .22 School – 5.35

APPROPRIATIONS AND EXPENDITURES **COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 31, 1974**

322.70 9.25 592.81 ,441.36 42.00 576.05 2,009.91 ,382.69 156.11 Overdraft θ Unexpended 1.00 10.00 446.87 200,00 136.02 194.41 Balance ω 50.00 \$ 4,149.00 34.25 1,800.00 1,072.70 1,454.81 3,009.91 16,441.36 3,263.98 442.00 953.13 2,174.11 3,291.80 6,600.81 4,641.91 778.03 Expenditures 750.00 60.00 25.00 \$ 4,150.00 1,000.00 2,000.00 400.00 1,400.00 2,018.00 2,715.75 6,008.00 5,000.00 3,400.00 3,259.22 778.03 1,649.22 Available Total Amt. \$ 100.00 18.00 149.22 15.75 8.00 259.22 Receipts & Reimbursements \$ 4,050.00 750.00 60.00 25.00 1,000.00 2,000.00 3,400.00 3,000.00 400.00 1,400.00 2,000.00 2,700.00 6,000.00 5,000.00 1,500.00 778.03 Approp. riation **Town Maintenance - Summer** General Expense of Highway **Town Maintenance - Winter** Damages & Legal Expenses Town Officers' Expenses Expenses of Town Hall & Election & Registration Title of Appropriation: Town Officers' Salaries TRA - Town Road Aid Sewer Maintenance Health Department Other Buildings Police Department Fire Department Street Lighting Vital Statistics Town Dump

Brush Fund

-12-

Title of Appropriation:	Approp. riation	Receipts & Reimburse- ments	Tota <mark>l</mark> Amt. Available	Expend- itures	Unexpended Over- Balance draft	Over- draft
Special Gravel Libraries Town Poor Old Age Assistance Parks & Playgrounds Cemeteries Interest on Temporary Loans Abatements	\$ 375.00 400.00 5,000.00 125.00 400.00 1,000.00	\$	\$ 375.00 400.00 5,180.00 125.00 400.00 1,000.00	\$ 329.92 5,345.23 1,144.40 619.05	\$ 45.08 84.00	\$ 59.80 165.23 144.40 619.05
Total Appropriations: County Taxes: School Taxes:	<pre>\$ 51,363.03 9,500.00 141,489.00</pre>	\$ 730.19	\$ 730.19 \$ 52,093.22 \$ 58,497.20 9,500.00 8,020.95 141,489.00 142,201.25	\$ 58,497.20 8,020.95 142,201.25	\$ 1,117.38 1,479.05	\$ 7,521.36 712.25
TOTALS Net Overdraft of Appropriations	\$202,352.03	\$ 730.19	\$203,082.22	\$208,719.40	\$ 2,596.43	\$ 8,233.61 \$ 5,637.18
-13-		Town Overdraft County Surplus Balance Due School 1974-75 School Year	aft lus School ool Year	\$ 6,403.98 1,479.05 \$115,489.00		

FINANCIAL REPORT

Assets

Cash on hand of Treasurer January 1, 1975	···	\$48,071.50
Unredeemed Taxes from Tax Sales: 1973 1972 Previous years	\$ 24.31 34.44 176.94	235.69
Uncollected Taxes: 1974, Including Resident Taxes 1972	\$14,920.06 9.98	
		14,930.04
Total Assets Excess of Liabilities over Assets		\$63,237.23 53,082.16
Total		\$116,319.39
Liabilitie	s	
1974 Bond & Debt Retirement Tax, Due January 1, 1975 Balance of School Taxes		\$ 830.39
1974-75 School Year		115,489.00
Total Liabilities		\$116,319.39

TOWN CLERK'S REPORT

During the year ending December 31, 1974, a total of 14 births, 20 marriages and 25 deaths were recorded in the vital statistics records of the town.

Town Clerk's Receipts: Motor Vehicle Permit Fees Collected for Town Dog Tax Collected Pistol License Fees Filing Fees

Total Collected by Town Clerk and Deposited with Treasurer

\$16,145.17

\$15,945.17

160.00

20.00

20.00

TAX COLLECTOR'S REPORT

(For Current Year's Levy) SUMMARY OF WARRANTS PROPERTY, RESIDENT AND YIELD TAXES LEVY OF 1974

DR.

Taxes Committed to Collector: Property Taxes Resident Taxes National Bank Stock Taxes	\$120,817.15 4,600.00 59.17	
Total Warrants		\$125,476.32
Yield Taxes:		7,790.38
Added Taxes: Property Taxes Resident Taxes	\$ 171.50 140.00	
		311.50
Overpayments During Year: a/c Property Taxes a/c Resident Taxes	\$.00 .00	
		.00
Interest Collected on Delinquen Property Taxes:	t	19.06
Penalties Collected on Resident Taxes:		10.00
TOTAL DEBITS		\$133,607.26
	CR.	
Remittances to Treasurer: Property Taxes Resident Taxes National Bank Stock Taxes	\$107,815.34 3,190.00 21.00	

-16-

Yield Taxes Interest Collected 21.00 4,449.86

19.06

Penalties on Resident Taxes	10.00	
		\$115,505.26
Discounts Allowed:		.00
Abatements Made During Year: Property Taxes Resident Taxes Yield Taxes	\$ 223,94 150.00 2,808.00	
		3,181.94
Uncollected Taxes December 31, 1974: (As Per Collector's List) National Bank Stock Taxes Property Taxes Resident Taxes Yield Taxes	\$ 38.17 12,949.37 1,400.00 532.52	
		14,920.06
TOTAL CREDITS		\$133,607.26
	OF 1973	
LEVY	OF 1973 DR.	
LEVY		
LEVY C Uncollected Taxes - As of January 1, 1974: Property Taxes Resident Taxes	DR. \$ 19,268.25 1,170.00	\$ 20,742.26
LEVY C Uncollected Taxes - As of January 1, 1974: Property Taxes Resident Taxes	DR. \$ 19,268.25 1,170.00	
LEVY Uncollected Taxes - As of January 1, 1974: Property Taxes Resident Taxes Yield Taxes Added Taxes: Property Taxes	PR. \$ 19,268.25 1,170.00 304.01 \$ 27.72	
LEVY Uncollected Taxes - As of January 1, 1974: Property Taxes Resident Taxes Yield Taxes Added Taxes: Property Taxes	PR. \$ 19,268.25 1,170.00 304.01 \$ 27.72	\$ 20,742.26

-17-

Interest Collected on Delinquent Property Taxes & Yield Taxes:	\$ 449.60	
Penalties Collected on Resident Taxes:	88.00	
		\$ 537.60
TOTAL DEBITS		\$ 21,337.58
	CR.	
Remittances to Treasurer During Fiscal Year Ended		
December 31, 1974: Property Taxes Resident Taxes Yield Taxes	\$ 19,182.07 890.00 304.01	
Interest Collected During Year Penalties on Resident	449.60	
Taxes	88.00	* 00.010.00
		\$ 20,913.68
Abatements Made During Year:		
Property Taxes Resident Taxes Yield Taxes	\$ 113.90 310.00 .00	
		423.90
Uncollected Taxes - December 31, 1974: (As Per Collector's List)		
Property Taxes Resident Taxes	\$.00 .00	
		.00
TOTAL CREDITS		\$ 21,337.58

LEVY OF 1972

DR.

	ח.			
Uncollected Taxes - As of January 1, 1974: Property Taxes	\$	34.44	¢	24.44
			\$	34.44
Added Taxes: Overpayments:				
a/c Property Taxes	\$	(355.04)		
				(355.04)
				(000.01)
Interest Collected on Delinquent Property Taxes:	\$	5.28		
				5.00
				5.28
TOTAL DEBTIS			\$	(315.32)
•	CR.			
Remittances to Treasurer During Fiscal Year Ended				
December 31, 1974: Property Taxes	\$	24.46		
Interest Collected During	·	5.00		
Year	·	5.28		
			\$	29.74
Abatements Made During Year:				
Property Taxes (Refund)	\$	(355.04)		
				(355.04)
Uncollected Taxes -				
December 31, 1974:				
(As Per Collector's List) Property Taxes	\$	9.98		
	φ	9.90		
				9.98
TOTAL CREDITS			\$	(315.32)
-	19–			

SUMMARY OF TAX SALES ACCOUNTS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1974

DR.

Tax Sale on Account of Levies of:				vies of: Previous
	1973	1972	1971	Years
 (a) Balance of Unredeemed: Taxes of January 1, 1974 (b)Taxes Sold to Town During Current Fiscal Year 	\$ 24.31 867.21	\$ 34.44	\$ 44.38	\$132.56
Interest Collected After Sale	1.35	5.28	6.93	47.96
Redemption Costs	_	-	-	-
TOTAL DEBITS	\$892.87	\$ 39.72	\$ 51.31	\$180.52
		CR:		
Remittances to Treasurer During Year:				
Redemptions Interest & Costs	\$267.04	\$ -	\$ 16.61	\$132.56
After Sale	1.35	5.28	6.93	47.96
Abatements During Year	_	-	_	-
Deeded to Town During Year	24.31	24.46	21.08	-
Unredeemed Taxes - December 31, 1974	600.17	9.98	6.69	_
TOTAL CREDITS	\$892.87	\$ 39.72	\$ 51.31	\$180.52
		-20		

TREASURER'S REPORT

Cash on hand January 1, 1974 Received from all sources	\$ 74,236,71 258,128.53
Total Receipts Less Selectmen's Orders Paid	\$332,365.24 284,293.74
Cash on hand January 1, 1975	\$ 48,071.50
SUMMARY OF RECEIPTS	
Cash on hand January 1, 1974 Tax Collector Local Sources State of New Hampshire Temporary Loan	\$ 74,236.71 136,940.86 21,176.14 50,011.53 50,000.00 \$332,365.24

SUMMARY OF PAYMENTS

Town Officers's Salaries	\$\$ 4,149.00
Town Officers's Expenses	1,072.70
Election & Registration	442.00
Expenses of Town Hall & other Town Bldgs.	953.13
Police Department	2,174.11
Fire Department	1,454.81
Damages & Legal Expenses	3,291.80
Health Department	50.00
Vital Statistics	34.25
Town Dump	1,800.00
Sewer Maintenance	3,009.91
Town Maintenance	
Summer	6,600.81
Winter	16,441.36
Street Lighting	3,263.98
General Expense of Highway Dept.	4,641.91
Town Road Aid	778.03
Libraries	329.92
Town Poor	459.80
Old Age Assistance	5,345.23
Parks & Playgrounds	125.00
Cemeteries	316.00
Interest on Temporary Loans	1,144.40
Abatements	619.05
Duncan Fund	8,631.07
Highway Subsidy	11,376.35
Revenue Sharing	272.00
Stewartstown Manpower Program	100.00
Flood Disaster Account	9,391.00
New Hampshire Fence Co.	1,345.00
Diamond Pond Road	1,425.00
Payment of Temporary Loans	50,000.00
Bond & Debt Retirement	166.71
Taxes Bought by Town	867.21
Total Town Payments	\$142,071.54
County Tax	8,020.95
School Appropriations	134,201.25
Total Orders for All Purposes	\$284,293.74

DETAILED STATEMENT OF RECEIPTS

Received from Tax Collector: 1974 Property Taxes Resident Taxes Resident Tax Penalties National Bank Stock Yield Taxes Interest Collected	\$107,815.34 3,190.00 10.00 21.00 4,449.86 19.06	
1973 Property Taxes	19,438.22	\$115,489.77
Resident Taxes	890.00	
Resident Tax Penalties	88.00	
Yield Taxes	304.01	
Interest Collected	452.64	
		21,188.36
1973 Tax Sales Redeemed	7.85	
1972 Tax Sales Redeemed	29.74	
1971 Tax Sales Redeemed	44.62	
1970 Tax Sales Redeemed	67.30	
1969 Tax Sales Redeemed	12.72	
1968 Tax Sales Redeemed	55.84	
1966 Tax Sales Redeemed	44.66	
Total Received from Tax Collector	or	\$136,940.86
Received from Local Sources:	or	\$136,940.86
Received from Local Sources:	or	\$136,940.86
	-	\$136,940.86
Received from Local Sources: Lynne O. Placey, Town Clerk:	0r 15,945.17 160.00	\$136,940.86
Received from Local Sources: Lynne O. Placey, Town Clerk: Motor Vehicle Permit Fees Dog Licenses Filing Fees	15,945.17	\$136,940.86
Received from Local Sources: Lynne O. Placey, Town Clerk: Motor Vehicle Permit Fees Dog Licenses	15,945.17 160.00	\$136,940.86
Received from Local Sources: Lynne O. Placey, Town Clerk: Motor Vehicle Permit Fees Dog Licenses Filing Fees	15,945.17 160.00 20.00 20.00	\$136,940.86
Received from Local Sources: Lynne O. Placey, Town Clerk: Motor Vehicle Permit Fees Dog Licenses Filing Fees Pistol License Fees	15,945.17 160.00 20.00	\$136,940.86
Received from Local Sources: Lynne O. Placey, Town Clerk: Motor Vehicle Permit Fees Dog Licenses Filing Fees Pistol License Fees J. C. Kenneth Poore,	15,945.17 160.00 20.00 20.00	\$136,940.86
Received from Local Sources: Lynne O. Placey, Town Clerk: Motor Vehicle Permit Fees Dog Licenses Filing Fees Pistol License Fees J. C. Kenneth Poore, Collector of Diamond Pond	15,945.17 160.00 20.00 20.00 16,145.17	\$136,940.86
Received from Local Sources: Lynne O. Placey, Town Clerk: Motor Vehicle Permit Fees Dog Licenses Filing Fees Pistol License Fees J. C. Kenneth Poore, Collector of Diamond Pond Rent	15,945.17 160.00 20.00 20.00	\$136,940.86
Received from Local Sources: Lynne O. Placey, Town Clerk: Motor Vehicle Permit Fees Dog Licenses Filing Fees Pistol License Fees J. C. Kenneth Poore, Collector of Diamond Pond Rent J. C. Kenneth Poore, Sexton	15,945.17 160.00 20.00 20.00 16,145.17 622.00	\$136,940.86
Received from Local Sources: Lynne O. Placey, Town Clerk: Motor Vehicle Permit Fees Dog Licenses Filing Fees Pistol License Fees J. C. Kenneth Poore, Collector of Diamond Pond Rent	15,945.17 160.00 20.00 20.00 16,145.17	\$136,940.86
Received from Local Sources: Lynne O. Placey, Town Clerk: Motor Vehicle Permit Fees Dog Licenses Filing Fees Pistol License Fees J. C. Kenneth Poore, Collector of Diamond Pond Rent J. C. Kenneth Poore, Sexton	15,945.17 160.00 20.00 20.00 16,145.17 622.00 80.00	\$136,940.86
Received from Local Sources: Lynne O. Placey, Town Clerk: Motor Vehicle Permit Fees Dog Licenses Filing Fees Pistol License Fees J. C. Kenneth Poore, Collector of Diamond Pond Rent J. C. Kenneth Poore, Sexton	15,945.17 160.00 20.00 20.00 16,145.17 622.00	\$136,940.86
Received from Local Sources: Lynne O. Placey, Town Clerk: Motor Vehicle Permit Fees Dog Licenses Filing Fees Pistol License Fees J. C. Kenneth Poore, Collector of Diamond Pond Rent J. C. Kenneth Poore, Sexton	15,945.17 160.00 20.00 20.00 16,145.17 622.00 80.00	\$136,940.86
Received from Local Sources: Lynne O. Placey, Town Clerk: Motor Vehicle Permit Fees Dog Licenses Filing Fees Pistol License Fees J. C. Kenneth Poore, Collector of Diamond Pond Rent J. C. Kenneth Poore, Sexton Cemetery Lots	15,945.17 160.00 20.00 20.00 16,145.17 622.00 80.00	\$136,940.86
Received from Local Sources: Lynne O. Placey, Town Clerk: Motor Vehicle Permit Fees Dog Licenses Filing Fees Pistol License Fees J. C. Kenneth Poore, Collector of Diamond Pond Rent J. C. Kenneth Poore, Sexton Cemetery Lots Miscellaneous Income: Stop payment on lost check	15,945.17 160.00 20.00 20.00 16,145.17 622.00 80.00 \$ 702.00	\$136,940.86
Received from Local Sources: Lynne O. Placey, Town Clerk: Motor Vehicle Permit Fees Dog Licenses Filing Fees Pistol License Fees J. C. Kenneth Poore, Collector of Diamond Pond Rent J. C. Kenneth Poore, Sexton Cemetery Lots	15,945.17 160.00 20.00 20.00 16,145.17 622.00 80.00	\$136,940.86

Treasurer of U. S. Dept. of		
Navy, Brunswick, Me. for Police Services	\$ 18.00	
George M. Stevens & Son Co.,		
Rebate on Insurance	15.75	
S. Gray Construction, gravel	8.00	
USAA Casualty Insurance Co.,		
for Janet Steen, damage to	1,385.00	
Piper Hill Cemetery Paul L. Pierce, Selectman,	1,505.00	
Reimbursement for over-		
payment on salary	100.00	
Town of Stewartstown Manpower		
Program, Reimbursement for		
advance funds	100.00	
Town of Stewartstown, Revenue		
Sharing Fund, Reimb. for monies paid from town funds		
in error including: Wayne Ladd	239,46	
News & Sentinel	32.54	
Town of Stewartstown Flood Dis.		
Account, Reimb. for monies pai		
from town funds in error includ		
ing: Gary Owen, Colebrook Feed Store	334.75 356.25	
Hawkinsen Enterprises, Brushfire	550.25	
Creampoke, burning without		
permit	55.00	
Gary Owen, Reimb. for pump and		
valve from R. C. Hazelton Co.,		
paid for by town	259.22	
Total Received from Local Sources		\$ 21,176.14
Received from State of		
New Hampshire		
Description of Dublic Monto		
Department of Public Works, Highway Subsidy	\$ 11,386.59	
1974 Maintenance Class V	\$ 11,560.55	
Highways (Duncan Fund)	8,631.07	
1975 Diamond Pond Road	-,	
Winter Maintenance	1,425.00	
Federal Disaster Funds	4,120.00	
Recovery of OAA	180.00	
State of N.H., One-half share Forest Fire Bills	04.00	
1974 Meals & Rooms Tax	94.22 5,168.30	
1974 Railroad Tax	257.38	
	257.38	

1974 Bank Tax 1974 Interest & Dividends	\$	743.50	
Tax 1974 Business Profits Tax		739.35	
1974 Business Fronts Tax	-	17,266.12	
Total Received from State of New Hampshire			\$ 50,011.53
Temporary Loans:			
Colebrook Guaranty Savings Bank			50,000.00
Cash on hand, Jan. 1, 1974			\$258,128.53 74,236.71
Total			\$332,365.24

DETAILED STATEMENT OF PAYMENTS

Orders Drawn by Selectmen

Town Officers' Salaries

John D. Angevine, Selectman Paul L. Pierce, Selectman, (includes \$100.00 overpayment on salary in error which was reimbursed to town; see receipts) Hasen E. Burns, Selectman Burleigh Placey, Overseer of Poor Evelyn R. Bohan, Tax Collector Fabiana Parker, Auditor Glenna Rancloes, Auditor Lynne O. Placey, Town Clerk & Treasurer J. C. Kenneth Poore, Collector of Diamond Pond Rent	\$	750.00 850.00 750.00 200.00 750.00 84.00 90.00 600.00 75.00
	\$	4,149.00
Town Officers' Expenses		
News & Sentinel, All Legal Notices Postage Phone Calls Earle W. Ladd, Postmaster Envelopes Box Rent Brown & Saltmarsh, Office Supplies Traveling Expenses Burleigh Placey Hasen E. Burns, Concord John Angevine, Concord Paul Pierce, Concord Lynne Placey, Town Clerk's Convention Evelyn Bohan, Tax Collector's Convention M/S Printing & Advertising Office Supplies Tax Bills Checklists Stationery Wheeler & Clark, Dog Tags	\$	93.08 49.68 5.27 110.65 3.20 167.88 20.00 50.00 20.00 20.00 76.80 12.20 147.80 37.40 72.50 17.70 10.08
Lynne Placey, Office Supplies Evelyn Bohan, Envelopes & Office Supplies Branham Pub. Co., Auto Reference Books	_	33.61 116.10 8.75

\$ 1,072.70

Election and Registration

Fabiana Parker, Supervisor Marion Parrish, Supervisor Norma Burns, Supervisor Theodore Pariseau, Moderator	\$ 90.00 80.00 90.00 42.00
Ballot Clerks Burdett Adams Mrs. Floyd Shatney Deborah Halvorsen Cleora Richardson	20.00 20.00 20.00 20.00
J. C. Kenneth Poore	 60.00

Expenses of Town Hall & Other Buildings

Thibeault Gas & Appliance, Gas for Town Office	\$ 13.83
Colebrook Oil Co.	
Kerosene - Town Office	84.71
Oil - Town Office	320.02
New England Telephone, Office Phone	303.62
N.H. Electric Coop., Inc., Town Hall	40.78
Public Service Co.	
Town Office	29.21
Siren	29.21
Rural Gas Service, Inc., Gas for Town Office	71.10
Shatney's Auto Furnace, Cleaning pot burner	
at Town Office	17.40
Philip Burns, Cleaning & Garbage Removal	6.25
Harry Johnson, Cleaning Town Office	12.00
Evelyn Hunt, Janitor, Town Hall	25.00
Everyn Hunt, Juntor, Fown Hun	
	\$ 953.13
Police Department	
Dwight Dwinell, Chief of Police	\$ 1,377.50
Burleigh Placey, Constable	353.75
Holmes Gulf, Supplies	5.30
Equity Publishing, One Criminal Code	4.50
Independence Electronics, Supplies	5.00
Colon Chappell	80.00
Morey's Uniforms	348.06
	\$ 2,174.11

Fire Department

Beecher Falls Vol. Fire Department

Chimney fire, Halvorsens Truck Fire, Rte. 3 Halloween Fire Rodrique Apts. Spa Restaurant Ledges Pittsburg Fire Dept. Brush fire at Burdett Adams place, Town to be reimbursed by Hawkinsen Ent. for burning	\$ 167.50 87.50 97.50 132.50 180.00 142.50
without permit Colebrook Village Fire Department Treasurer, State of N.H., one-half share,	55.00 507.50
Indian Back Pump Gary Richardson, Fire Warden Wilman Allen, Fire Warden	 29.97 35.64 19.20
	\$ 1,454.81
Damages & Legal Expenses	
Dues N.H. City & Town Clerk's Assoc. N.H. Municipal Assoc. (1974 & 1975) N.H. Tax Collector's Assoc. N.H. Association of Assessing Officials Lynne O. Placey, Town Clerk 1974 Motor Vehicle Permits 677 1974 Dog Licenses 67 Making 1973 Town Report Typing Deeds Copying 1972 Blotter Insurance A.R. George Agency Workman's Compensation Granite State Floater Policy	\$ 8.00 200.00 10.00 677.00 13.40 60.00 4.00 50.00 463.00 21.00
OL&T Liability Floater Policy Fire Insurance, Town Office & Library Trustee Bond G.M. Stevens & Son Bonds for Town Officers	76.00 21.00 27.00 10.00 232.00
Donald Hunt, Hedgehog Bounty John D. Angevine, Hedgehog Bounty Constance Angevine	1.00 6.00
Tax Inventories Work on Taxes Jeannine Burns Tax Inventories	16.00 16.00 16.00
	10.00

Work on Town Records	\$	75.00 [°] 35.00
Work on Taxes Evelyn Bohan, Collecting Resident Tax		83.00
Coos County Register of Deeds		
Recording deeds		7.60
115 Transfer Cards		59.50 .10
Phyllis Parker, Registrar, deceased owner A. Gladys MacLean, Registrar, deceased owner		.10
M/S Printing & Advertising		
Town Reports & Ballots		538.70
Paul L. Pierce, Typing		25.00
Frederick Harrigan, Legal fees		30.00
Donald Dyer, Land Surveying Surveying four lots at Diamond Pond		500.00
Dept. of Revenue Administration		500.00
Ownership of Boats		.40
	_	
	\$	3,291.80
Health Department		
Robert Burns, Officer	\$	50.00
Vital Statistics		
Lynne O. Placey, Town Clerk		
Recording 1974 Vital Statistics,		
58 @ \$.50	\$	29.00
Sending copies as required by law		5.05
21 @ \$.25		5.25
	\$	34.25
Town Dump		
Town of Colebrook, Use of Dump	\$	1,800.00
Sewer Maintenance		
Daniel Hebert, Inc.	\$	2,478.92
Brooks Agway, Lime	ŕ	11.55
Beecher Construction		256.94
Town of Canaan, Vt., Backhoe		227.00
Beecher Falls Vol. Fire Dept., flushing sewer	_	35.50
	\$	3,009.91

TOWN MAINTENANCE

Summer

Howard Carney, West Side Agent, Summer Roads Gary Owen, East Side Agent, Summer Roads Total Summer Maintenance	\$ 2,611.15 3,989.66	\$ 6,600.81			
Winter					
Howard Carney, West Side Agent, Winter Roads Aime Masson, plowing snow	\$ 5,653.70 168.00				
Corry Owen Winter Boards	\$ 5,821.70				
Gary Owen, Winter Roads, (March to Dec. 1974)	7,613.34				
Frank Rancloes, Winter Roads, (Jan. to March 1974)	3,006.32				
Total Winter Maintenance	\$10,619.66	\$16,441.36			
Duncan Fu					
Gary Owen, South Hill Gary Owen, Bear Rock Road Howard Carney, Piper Hill	\$ 4,206.92 1,022.75 3,401.40				
		\$ 8,631.07			
Highway Subsidy					
Howard Carney Gary Owen	\$ 2,093.00 9,283.35				
		\$11,376.35			
Street Lights					
Public Service, Street Lights, Blinker N.H. Electric Coop., Inc. Street Lights	3	\$ 2,914.38 81.57 268.03			
		\$ 3,263.98			

General Expense of Highway Department

Pike Industries, Inc., Cold Patch	\$	897.56			
R.C. Hazelton Co. Parts for Sander		399.95			
Sander Sprocket		20.72			
Cargill, Inc., Salt for Winter Sand		1,108.02			
Colebrook Feed Store Road Salt		9.00			
Chloride		926.25			
Northeastern Culvert Co.		1,233.43			
P. A. Hicks & Sons Sanel Auto Parts, 2 highway signs		34.00 12.98			
Sanel Auto Parts, 2 highway signs					
	\$	4,641.91			
Town Road Aid					
Treasurer, State of N.H.,					
Town's Share	\$	778.03			
Libraries					
Norma Burns, Salary	\$	182.00			
Evelyn Hunt, Salary		122.92			
J.C. Kenneth Poore, Library Trust Fund		25.00			
	\$	329.92			
Town Poor					
Myron's Common Market	\$	257.46			
Nugent Motor Co., Oil Wilderness Restaurant		20.22 17.32			
Holyoke Hospital		90.14			
UCV Hospital		3.00			
Dr. W.H. Gifford		10.00 12.00			
Dr. Marjorie Parsons Solomon's Store		49.66			
	\$	459.80			
Old Age Assistance					
Late Payment for Oct. 1971	\$	75.43			
OAA		1,471.88			
Disabled Assistance		1,692.10 2,105.82			
Intermediate Nursing Care	_	2,105.82			
	\$	5,345.23			
-31-					

Parks & Playgrounds		
Michael Daley, Care of Park	\$	125.00
Cemeteries		
Paul Pierce, Work on Cemeteries Use of Pickup Mark Winer, Work at Hollow Cemetery H. Lemieux, Lawnmower J. C. Kenneth Poore, Sexton	\$	88.00 12.00 22.00 90.00 104.00
	\$	316.00
Interest on Temporary Loans		
Colebrook Guaranty Savings Bank, Interest on Ioan	\$1	,144.40
Abatements		
Evelyn R. Bohan, Tax Collector Taxes paid to Treasurer in error Automotive Sales Inc., Tax rebate per order Dept. of Rev. Adm. after hearing New Hampshire Office of Manpower Affairs, Return of overpayment Wilma Holden, Unused car registration	\$	55.71 355.04 200.00 8.30
	\$	619.05
Miscellaneous Payments		
Revenue Sharing Payments in error to be reimb. by Revenue Sharing Account Wayne Ladd \$ 239.46 News & Sentinel 32.54		
	\$	272.00
Stewartstown Manpower Program To be reimb. by Manpower funds James Hunt Flood Disaster Account Advance funds to be reimb. by government funds Gary Owen Colebrook Feed Store, chloride	\$ \$ 8	100.00 ,700.00 334.75 356.25

New Hampshire Fence Co. Fence for Piper Hill Cemetery damaged by auto accident and to be reimb. by Insurance Co.	\$ [^]	1,345.00
Diamond Pond Road		
Diamond Pond Road Winter Maintenance, E. H. Roy, replacement for lost check - 1973	\$	1,425.00
County Tax		
Treasurer, Coos County	\$ 8	3,020.95
Payment of Temporary Loans		
Colebrook Guaranty Savings Bank, Temporary Loan	\$5	0,000.00
School Tax		
1973-74 Stewartstown School District 1974-75 Stewartstown School District		8,201.25 6,000.00
Total School Payments	\$13	4,201.25
Bond & Debt Retirement		
State Treasurer, Concord, N.H.	\$	166.71
Taxes Bought by Town		
Evelyn R. Bohan, Tax Collector Taxes bought by town	\$	867.21
Total Orders Drawn for all purposes Cash on hand, Dec. 31, 1974		4,293.74 4,236.71
Grand Total	\$35	8,530.45

TOWN OF STEWARTSTOWN REVENUE SHARING FUND

Balance	January	1,	1974	
Balance	January	1,	1974	

. .

\$ 5,854.04

Receipts - 1974

Dept. of-the Treas., Washington, D.C. Colebrook Guaranty Savings Bank, Interest	\$14,205.00 596.18	
1974 Receipts Total Receipts	\$14,801.18	\$20,655.22
Payments - 1974		
 News & Sentinel, required legal notices Ambulance District A-1 Convalesce Wayne Ladd, Town Hall Repairs L. Parkhurst & Sons, Supplies for repairing Town Hall P. A. Hicks & Sons, Supplies for repairing Town Hall Donald Dyer, Land Surveying, Partial payment on Tax Map Town of Stewartstown, Reimb. for 	\$ 43.13 750.00 1,000.00 162.00 215.67 8.44 3,466.25	
payments made in error from town funds for: Wayne Ladd, Town Hall repairs News & Sentinel, legal notice 1974 Payments	239.46 32.54	\$ 5,917.49
Total Receipts Total Payments Balance, January 1, 1975	\$20,655.22 5,917.49 414,737.73	

TOWN OF STEWARTSTOWN FLOOD DISASTER ACCOUNT

Balance, January 1, 1974

\$ 935.35

Receipts - 1974

Town of Stewartstown, Advance funds to be reimb. by Federal Gov't. (\$4,120.00 has been reimb. to date; see Rec't)	\$ 8,700.00	¢ 0.005.05
Total Receipts		\$ 9,635.35
Payments - 1974		
Gary Owen, Road Agent Howard Carney, Road Agent Town of Stewartstown, pay- ments in error from town funds to:	\$ 4,310.04 4,589.00	
Gary Owen	334.75	
Colebrook Feed Store	356.25	
Total Payments		\$ 9,590.04
Total Receipts Total Payments	\$ 9,635.35 9,590.04	

i otal i ayments	5	,550:04
Balance, January 1, 1975	\$	45.31

CEMETERIES

J. C. Kenneth Poore, Sexton

North Hill Cemetery: J. C. Kenneth Poore Mark Winer Paul Pierce	\$ 22.00 22.00 22.00
Piper Hill Cemetery: J. C. Kenneth Poore	22.00
Paul Pierce	22.00
South Hill Cemetery:	
J. C. Kenneth Poore	22.00
Paul Pierce	22.00
Hollow Cemetery:	
J. C. Kenneth Poore	38.00
Paul Pierce	22.00
Paul Pierce, use of pick-up truck	12.00
Lawn Mower Purchased from H. J. Lemieux	90.00
Totals	\$ 316.00

STEWARTSTOWN

MANPOWER PROGRAM

Total Receipts from Emergency Employment Act Funds	\$ 1,750.00
Total Wages Paid to Emergency Employee, James B. Hunt Advanced Funds Repaid to Town of	591.00
Stewartstown Balance on Hand December 31, 1974	100.00 1,059.00

FINANCIAL REPORT

West Stewartstown Water Precinct

Year Ending December 31, 1974

Assets

Cash on hand Fixed Assets Uncollected Water Rent	\$ 274.46 84,800.00 876.91
Total Assets	\$85,951.37
Liabilities	
Notes Outstanding F.H.A. First Colebrook Bank	\$52,392.08 2,400.00
Excess of Assets over Liabilities	\$54,792.08 31,159.29
Grand Total	\$85,951.37
Receipts	
Water Rent Insurance Dividend Reimbursement for material (G. LaFlamme) Cash on hand January 1, 1974	\$ 6,981.63 6.70 1,310.45 163.55
Total	\$ 8,462.13
Payments	
Salaries and Wages Collectors Fees and Postage Canaan Water Auditors Repairs and Maintenance Insurance Colebrook Bank F.H.A. Payment Two Checks (Insufficient Funds)	\$ 700.75 348.07 1,449.75 20.00 1,820.39 116.00 72.00 3,585.00 75.71
10131	\$ 8,187.67

Cash on Hand at end of year

274.46

Grand Total

\$ 8,462.13

Commissioners:

SHERMAN DORMAN MERTON DAY ROBERT J. BURNS

	S	
	7	
	5	
~	FUNI	
ę		-
- 1	H	S
	TRUST	õ
	P	S
1'	2	- H
	F	A
	(T)	E
	F	ST
		10F
	OF THE	0
~	Ľ,	S
	0	õ
	EPORT O	-
1.	5	
2	H	
	0	
1		
	H	
	Y	

.35 108.11	127.91	72.24	71.42		22.74	47.01	55.35	80.35	49.41	34.47	139.02	55.02	21.45
2.58 10.50	8.50	3.50	3.50		3.50	3.50	.50	3.50	1.00	3.50	3.50	3.50	4.00
2.58 15.47	26.05	8.53	8.49		6.13	7.31	12.41	8.91	7.30	6.69	16.62	8.23	60.9
50.35 308.11	527.91	172.24	171.42		122.74	147.01	255.35	180.35	149.41	134.47	339.02	166.02	121.45
50.35 303.14	510.36	167.21	166.43		120.11	143.20	243.44	174.94	143.11	131.28	325.90	161.29	119.36
Charles Lang Benjamin Drew	I homas H. Van Dyke, Jr.	Fred H. Noyes	Fred Flanders	Almeda Flanders	(A. L. Owen Lot)	Erwin Haines	Jennie Owen	Benjamin Abbott	Arthur Forrest	Fay Richardson	Levi Brooks	Alva Sawyer	George Sawyer
05/03/24 05/03/24	07/ /68	05/05/41	08/26/41	08/03/41			1941-47	10/14/48	10/18/45	09/04/51	1950	08/14/54	08/11/54

50.90		19.55	38.48	87.13	33.42	29.53		29.30	23.44	46.17		16.32		19.16		.19			11.13	9.98		13.30		\$1,380.59	
3.00		2.00	3.50	4.50	3.00	1.00	9.18	3.00	3.50	.50		1.00		3.00		3.00		5.11	3.00	3.00		4.00	2.56	\$113.43	
7.47		5.89	6.89	14,15	6.61	6.33	5.30	6.41	6.17	11.59		5.71		5.93		2.59		5.11	5.53	5,48		5.69	2.56	\$264.39	
150.90		119.55	138.48	287.13	133.42	129.53	100.00	129.30	123.44	146.17		116.32		119.16		50.19		100.00	111.13	109.98		113.30	50.00	\$5,241.59	
146.43		115.66	135.09	277.48	129.20	124.20	103.88	125.89	120.77	135.08		111.61		116.23		50.60		100.00	108.60	107.50		111.61	50.00	\$5,090.63	Lots
Leona Rawling (Care of Calvin Gilbert)	Annie and Charles	Heath	Nelson Boudle	Sadie V. Wood	Walter Knapp	Edward Beauchemin	Amos Tewksbury*	Homer C. Forbes	Darwin Brooks	Chief Metallak	Walter and Alice	Flanders	Joyce Knapp for	Oscar Forbes	Joyce Knapp for	Chandler Knapp	K. Poore for Addison	Hutchinson	George Gerry Fund	Joyce & Alfred Knapp	Mr. & Mrs. Charles	Holden	Hiram Harriman*		Fund: Care of Cemetery Lots
02/18/58	02/18/56		07/13/56	12/24/59	06/18/62	05/20/62	09/03/47	10/18/63	06/10/64	10/03/66	02/16/64		12/28/67		12/28/67		04/11/68		1970	1970	1971		1972	TOTALS	Purpose of Fund:

All invested at The First Colebrook Bank with the exception of Amos Tewksbury and Hiram Harriman invested at Colebrook Farmers and Traders Bank. How Invested:

STEWARTSTOWN HOLLOW

PUBLIC LIBRARY FINANCIAL REPORT

Receipts: Sale of Books at Fairs Received from Town Balance on Hand December 31, 1973	\$ 22.60 148.62 145.62	
Total Assets		\$ 316.84
Expenditures: Copper tubing 6 keys Rug Curtains-rods Flea Market Booths Plants Index Cards	\$ 9.00 3.00 35.76 3.94 6.00 2.00 .50	
Total Expenditures		\$ 60.20
Total Assets Total Expenditures Balance on Hand	\$ 316.84 60.20	
December 31, 1974		\$ 256.64

Submitted by

Nancy J. Adams Trustee

WEST STEWARTSTOWN PUBLIC LIBRARY FINANCIAL REPORT

Receipts: Cash on h	and January 1, 1974	\$ 37.79
Disbursemen Apr. 4 May 23 July 18 Sept. 19	ts: Postage State Library N. H. Times Eastern Book Co.	5.00 8.50 9.00 8.42
Total Disbur Balance on H		\$ 30.92 6.87 37.79

Norma Burns, Librarian

MENTAL HEALTH SERVICE, INC.

REPORT OF SERVICE TO THE TOWN OF STEWARTSTOWN - 1974

Over the past four years, Upper Connecticut Valley Mental Health Service, Inc. has provided a wide range of services to the people of our valley towns. Overall community response to the agency has increased and we have an average of 16 new admissions each month. This year, counseling and treatment programs were of benefit to 266 individuals and their families in the area we serve, including fifteen from Stewartstown.

Mental health staff members work with school personnel in developing flexible programs for assisting students with problems. Working jointly with parents, teachers and other helping people, such as the school nurses, students are offered counseling as well as other psychological services. We have recently hired the area's first full-time psychologist and will be better able to handle the schools' requests for testing and evaluation.

Again this year, admissions of area residents to New Hampshire Hospital have been minimal since we have been able to treat most potential inpatients at the Upper Connecticut Valley Hospital or in their own homes.

Upper Connecticut Valley Mental Health Service is near the people it is meant to serve. Our office is open 9 to 5, with evening appointments available if that is the only time a client can be seen. Staff is available through the hospital switchboard for psychiatric emergencies. Since the agency is locally based, people can get help quickly, with the result that very few residents need leave the area for assistance.

Stewartstown's contribution to Upper Connecticut Valley Mental Health Service is important to our continued service. Contributions help in obtaining matching funds from State and other sources, and it helps us provide staff for help when it is needed. Costs are kept low as possible without impairing the quality of care. Per capita costs for our area are far below those of other rural mental health programs.

Upper Connecticut Valley Mental Health Service meets all State and professional standards for such programs, and is a full member of the New Hampshire Association of Community Mental Health Agencies.
Our staff includes:
Beverly Foss Wise, ACSW Psychiatric Social Worker, Executive Director
Elizabeth Macdonald, Administrative Assistant
Rosemary Brewster, M.D., Psychiatrist
Arthur M. Weinstein, M.S. Associate School Psychologist
Lynn M. Chapple, B.A., Social Work Aide
Robert A. Schmidt, Ph.D., Psychologist

Respectfully submitted,

BEVERLY FOSS WISE, ACSW Executive Director

CONNECTICUT VALLEY EFFORT TO SERVE THE CONFINED EFFECTIVELY CONVALESCE

Report of Services Rendered in the Town of Stewartstown

CONVALESCE is one of the forty New Hampshire community health agencies whose purpose it is to provide health services to people in their homes, and to help both sick and well people to attain and maintain health.

One of the advantages of a locally controlled health agency is that its services can be developed in response to local needs. Our Board of Trustees is made up of your friends and neighbors, and they are willing to listen to and act upon your suggestions and comments.

Last year our home visiting program served about 25 new patients monthly. A total of 135 home visits, providing nursing, physical therapy, personal care, homemaking, and health and welfare information, were done in the town of Stewartstown.

Community-wide services included expectant parent's classes which touched the lives of about forty families. These sessions are held in the fall and in the spring, and are open to anyone who is interested.

This spring, immunization clinics will be held for all pre-school children from the age of two months up. We hope to eventually hold these clinics on a monthly basis, and to expand the services offered within this program to include various health screening tests and informational services.

Family planning services are also being planned for, to be available in the spring.

Community services are generally free. Home visiting services are often covered by Medicare, Medicaid, or special state and federal grants, and sometimes by private insurance. Those not covered by these are charged on a sliding fee basis geared to the financial capabilities of each patient. These free or partial fee services result in our dependence on the towns we serve for financial aid. Contributions this year are especially important, as they will help us obtain matching funds to continue and expand homemaker/home health aide services, as well as our maternal and child health services (immunizations program, expectant parent's classes and family planning).

Thank you for your continued support of our activities.

Respectfully submitted, LOUISE PARISEAU FULLER, RN Executive Director

AMBULANCE DISTRICT A-1 REPORT TO THE TOWNS

The Ambulance District A-1 continues to cover 1200 square miles of northern New Hampshire and Vermont with volunteer ambulance corps stationed in North Stratford, New Hampshire; Colebrook, New Hampshire and Pittsburg, New Hampshire.

All ambulance attendants take call on a volunteer basis and are compensated only for time spent on ambulance sorties. Many of the volunteers donate their earning to their respective ambulance corps for improvement in both training and equipment. All ambulance drivers are trained either with advanced Red Cross training or as Emergency Medical Technicians at their own time and expense.

An ambulance anywhere in the area can be dispatched through a new 24 hour per day central dispatching service in Colebrook, New Hampshire, telephone 237-4971. The ambulance is dispatched for emergency calls approximately two out of every three days with an average response from the time of the initial call until the ambulance is on the road of less than six minutes in 80% of the calls. This is unsurpassed by any ambulance district in the state. The average length of ambulance sortie one way is 9.6 miles for local calls and 84.6 miles for transfers to hospitals outside the district. Approximately one out of every six families in the area will require use of the ambulance with in the next year. Nearly 50% of the families in the area will have a family member involved in a serious automobile accident within the next five years.

This year the ambulance district was proud to have Fred Harrigan voted as the first state wide Emergency Medical Technician of the month by the Department of Emergency Medical Services in Concord, New Hampshire. The first Advanced Emergency Medical Technician course to be given in either New Hampshire or Vermont was conducted in Colebrook in the fall of 1974.

With the help of the \$.92 per person appropriated in 1974, the ambulance district was able to have a balanced budget and retire its debt.

In the next year we hope to station another ambulance within the district as well as to improve communications facilities to prevent "dead spots" within the district. This can be done if approximately \$1.00 per person is raised for matching with Federal and State Funds.

Respectfully submitted,

District Ambulance Board A-1 January 22, 1975 1973 - 1974

REPORT OF

STEWARTSTOWN SCHOOL DISTRICT

OFFICERS

Moderator THEODORE W. PARISEAU

> Clerk EVELYN B. HUNT

> Treasurer EVELYN B. HUNT

> > Auditors

FABIANA PARKER

GLENNA RANCLOES

School Board

LOUISE McKINNON, CHRM. SHIRLEY McALLASTER EMILY HAYNES Term Expires 1975 Term Expires 1976 Term Expires 1977

Superintendent of Schools Stephen E. Dehl

Business Administrator Perley E. Davis

STEWARTSTOWN SCHOOL DISTRICT

The State of New Hampshire

To the Inhabitants of the School District in the Town of Stewartstown qualified to vote in District Affairs:

You are hereby notified to meet at the Town Hall in said District on Tuesday, the 4th day of March, 1975, at 10:00 o'clock in the forenoon at which time the polls will be open, followed by the business meeting at 2:00 o'clock in the afternoon, to act upon the following subjects:

- To bring in your ballots for the election of School District Officers to be elected by ballot for the School District of Stewartstown for the ensuing year(s).
- 2. To determine the salaries of the Officers and fix the compensation of any Agents of the District.
- 3. To hear the reports of Agents, Auditors, Committees, or Officers chosen and pass any vote relating thereto.
- 4. To see if the Stewartstown School District will vote to authorize and demand the Stewartstown School Board to put each and every out of town school bus run up for bids at the expiration of contracts. The intent of this petition is for the sole purpose of giving Stewartstown residents a chance to bid on bus routes in Stewartstown. (By Petition) (Non Ballot)
- 5. To see if the District will vote to authorize the School Board to make application for and to accept, on behalf of the District, any or all grants or offers for educational purposes which may now or hereafter be forthcoming from the State of New Hampshire and/or the United States.
- 6. To see waht sum of money the District will vote to raise and appropriate for the support of schools, for the payment of salaries for school district officials and agents, and for the payment of the statutory obligations of the District.
- 7. To transact any other business that may legally come before this meeting.

Given under our hands at said Stewartstown this 17th day of

February, 1975.

LOUISE McKINNON, Chairperson EMILY HAYNES SHIRLEY McALLASTER Stewartstown School Board

A true copy of warrant - attest:

LOUISE McKINNON, Chairperson EMILY HAYNES SHIRLEY McALLASTER Stewartstown School Board

PROCEEDINGS OF SCHOOL DISTRICT MEETING

March 5, 1974

Stewartstown, N. H.

The meeting was called to order at 2:00 p.m. by Moderator Theodore Pariseau, for discussion and voting on the warrant.

- ART. 2. Motion made by John Angevine and seconded by Hazen Burns to leave the salaries as stated in the budget. Voted Yes.
- ART. 3. The AREA plan was explained by Perley Davis. He explained that the board, after hearing from the planning committee, decided to drop the idea for now because none of the area high schools have room for all Stewartstown's high school students. Reports were accepted as printed in the Town Report.
- ART. 4. The insurance plan was explained by Perley Davis. The motion was made by Hazen Burns and seconded by Nancy Adams to accept the plan. Voted Yes.
- ART. 5. This article to buy the land from Shirley McAllaster and and Louise McKinnon was on the ballot. The result was to buy the land. Yes Votes: 117 No Votes: 61
- ART. 6. The motion was made by Hazen Burns and seconded by Howard Carney to allow the school board to accept any and all grants for educational purposes. Voted Yes.
- ART. 7. Perley Davis explained the budget. Several questions were asked and answered. A motion by F. Robert Lynch and seconded by Paul Pierce to accept the budget was voted yes.
- ART. 8. The motion by Virginia Hurley and seconded by Howard Carney was voted yes.

ART. 1. Election results:

Moderator	Theodore Pariseau	49
Clerk	Evelyn Hunt	199
Treasurer	Evelyn Hunt	194
School Board	Emily Haynes	215
Auditors	Glenna Rancloes	176
	Fabiana Parker	206

The above took oath of office.

A true copy attest:

EVELYN B. HUNT Clerk

SUPERINTENDENT'S REPORT

The Stewartstown School District is to be commended for the renovations made the past year at both the Hollow and West Side Schools. Two major projects completed at the Hollow School were the hot topping of a substantial portion of the driveway and playground area and the installation of insulation materials resulting in a substantial savings in fuel costs. The 7th and 8th grade room at the West Side School was renovated with new windows being installed and the ceiling lowered also resulting in the saving of heat. Carpeting was installed in the library room and the boy's lavoratory was renovated. It is planned that the 3rd and 4th grade room will be renovated during the 1975-76 school year thereby completing the installation of new windows and ceilings for the classrooms.

Although pupil enrollment projections show a decline in school enrollment in the years ahead, the current tuition enrollment of Stewartstown pupils in the surrounding high schools will remain large for the next few years. This will result in a larger tuition payment obligation due to the increase in pupils but this too is expected to drop within 3 or 4 years.

Presently, the school board, staff and administration are engaged in developing a local accountability program. The program will become effective during the 1975-76 school year. Under this program, voters will be informed annually of the degree to which the district has achieved its stated educational goals and objectives for the preceeding year. Also involved will be a state testing program which will help assess educational programs in local school districts.

A special thanks is extended to Mr. Wayne Ladd, Mr. Keith Haynes, and Mr. Ray Bryant for the volunteer work they have done for the Stewartstown School District at the West Side School. A result of the giving of their time has been a number of building improvements which have added greatly to the appearance of the school.

The following individuals are also thanked for the committee work they have completed the past school year:

S.U. #7 Staff Development Committee	S.U. #7 Vocational Ed. Advisory Committee
Mrs. Addie Gray Mr. James Bibbo Mrs. Emily Haynes Mr. Paul Pierce	Mr. Shirley McAllaster Mr. Louis Day
	Respectfully submitted,
	STEPHEN E DEHI

STEPHEN E. DEHL Superintendent of Schools

GUIDANCE COUNSELOR'S REPORT

Last fall, I administered Otis-Lennon Mental Ability Tests to eighth graders in the public schools of Supervisory Union #7. Early in January I administered the Differential Aptitude Test Battery to the same students. In May, I talked with each eighth grader concerning the results of his tests and the importance of the results to him. On the basis of these tests and the course offerings available at Colebrook Academy and Pittsburg High School, a course of study was developed for each student for Freshman year. A letter indicating the courses chosen was sent to parents for their review and signature. Where there were questions raised. I met with the parents concerning them. Also in May, arrangements were made for Stewartstown eighth graders to visit Colebrook Academy and Pittsburg High School - attending classes and touring the facilities. During the year, I met with Stewartstown eighth graders as regularly as possible and worked with them on matters of attitudes, values and career development,

In November, the Armed Services Vocational Aptitude Battery was given to all Freshmen. The results of these tests were discussed with each Freshman in January and then used again in April when I was talking with them concerning their courses for the 1974-75 school year and their plans for the future.

During December, I discussed with each Sophomore his progress and plans. I met with each one again in April to construct a course of study for the 1974-75 school year.

In January, I talked with each Junior about his progress and plans. In the case of Juniors who had taken the Preliminary Scholastic Aptitude Tests, results were explained to them. Where applicable, individual Juniors were encouraged and advised to take the College Board Examinations and the Achievement Tests. Each Junior met with me again in May to formulate a course of study for the 1974-75 school year.

In April, a statewide Career Interest Inventory was administered to all upperclassmen.

During April and May, Stanford Achievement Tests were given for the purpose of measuring the progress of each student in the second, fourth and sixth grades within the District. I personally corrected the tests for Pittsburg and Stewartstown during the Spring Vacation at considerable savings to these districts. The results of these tests were reviewed with the teachers concerned and are available to interested parents.

During the summer a considerable amount of work was done on individual student records and on planning for the 1974-75 school year. Since the opening of school this fall on September 4, I have been working with each Senior on concrete procedures to implement his plans whether job, Service or further schooling. I have tried a new idea this fall of talking with each Freshman early in the year about his adjustment to high school and his progress. I have also for the first time oriented them to the use of of the Guidance Room. All of this hopefully will prevent future problems.

Thus far this year, Murphy-Durrell Reading Readiness Tests have been administered to all first graders and the results discussed with the appropriate teachers. I have administered Otis-Lennon Mental Ability Tests to eighth graders and the Preliminary Scholastic Aptitude Tests to those Juniors planning to attend a school of some type after high school. Otis-Lennon Mental Ability Tests either are being, or have been, given to all second graders.

In addition to the above, much of my time is consumed with the following:

- 1. Transfer of records when a student moves to another school or a new student arrives to our school.
- Meeting with college admission representatives, Armed Service Recruiters, representatives of Talent Search, Vermont Student Assistance Corporation, Citizen's Scholarship Association, ROTC, etc.
- 3. Providing information for teachers concerning their students.
- 4. Problems of individual students as they develop.
- 5. Helping students locate information concerning specific schools or occupations.

I have checked on virtually all of last year's Seniors and find that in Pittsburg, out of a class of 17, this is what they are doing:

Living at Home	- 2	
Job	- 8½	(one is attending night school also)
School	- 2½	(same person as above, working and
		attending night school)
Married	.2	
Armed Services	5 - 2	

This indicates that about 12% are attending school. However, 4 were admitted to college which is 23% of the class.

The Colebrook Class of 1974 is presently performing as follows:

Job	- 26
Living at Home	- 5
School	- 13
Married	- 2
Armed Services	- 2

This indicates that about 27% went on to further education.

I am pleased to say that in talking with Seniors this year, there has been a distinct upsurge in the number expressing an intent of going on to school.

Respectfully submitted, JOHN M. SHIELDS Guidance Counselor

SCHOOL HEALTH REPORT

The school health program has been set up this year with two nurses to perform the necessary functions and requirements of the state and to maintain and promote good health to all the pupils in our schools under Supervisory Union #7.

Each year the following services are performed:

Checking heights, weights and teeth; testing hearing and vision; physical examinations for those participating in athletics as well as grades 4, 8, and 11; TB skin tests as needed for students and annually for all personnel working in the union; immunizations as needed; urine tests for grades 4, 8, and 11; home visits; phone calls and letter contacts for follow through health care as deemed necessary; promotion of good mental health; first aid and emergency care; health teaching and counseling and continuous supervision of general health.

We have acquired school physicians this year - Dr. Gifford and Dr. Parsons who provide professional medical advice and care required to maintain health services for the pupils.

The matching Dental Fund Program sponsored by the state and local towns was utilized again this year providing care to needy students as far as the funding would extend.

A Cardiac film was provided to pupils grades 7 through 12 and the public for awareness and concern of heart disease.

The pre-school hearing and vision clinic will be sponsored in May by the N.H. Division of Public Health for early detection of defects.

The Sight Conservation Program presented by the State of N.H. is still being utilized by those needing to do so.

The Portsmouth Rehabilitation Center is available to our area by mobile unit for evaluation of students failing hearing tests.

Crippled Children's Services has provided orthopedic exams and clinic treatments.

Again this year, the N.H. Bureau of Dental Health has presented the dental prevention program to fourth graders, with daily brushing and flossing of teeth and weekly food coloring tablets used to detect plaque under supervision of their classroom teacher. The objectives of this program are to eliminate dental plaque and help the student develop daily habits necessary for effective oral hygiene and thereby reduce dental diseases.

North Country Education Services again provided speech therapy for all students in the union requiring help.

Upper Connecticut Valley Mental Health Services are available as needed and we now have a **psychologist** in the area working directly in the schools.

A reminder to all parents of children entering first grade: The State Department of Education requires each youngster to meet the following requirements prior to school entry:

- 1. Physical examination
- 2. T.B. test within one year
- 3. Complete Diptheria, Pertussis and Tetanus Vaccine Series (5 in all)
- 4. Complete oral Polio Vaccine Series (5 in all)
- 5. Rubella Vaccine (german measles)
- 6. Rubeola Vaccine (measles)

All parents are urged to take advantage of the pre-school clinics available in their area to prepare their youngsters for meeting the above requirements for entering school.

Every year everyone involved in our schools strive to improve the health program for all. With everyone working together, I hope this will be achieved.

> Respectfully submitted, CONSTANCE J. PIERCE, R.N. School Nurse

FINANCIAL REPORT

1973 - 1974

RECEIPTS

Revenue from Local Sources: Current Appropriation Rent Other, Revenue from Local Sources	\$142,201.25 12.00 13.88	\$142,227.13	
Revenue from State Souces: Foundation Aid Sweepstakes Child Benefit Services School Lunch – State Funds	30,700.63 3,208.04 2,426.97 233.71		
		\$ 36,569.35	
Revenue from Federal Sources: National Forest Reserve School Lunch and Milk Program Title I ESEA	121.62 3,415.43 3,000.00		
		\$ 6,537.05	
Miscellaneous Accounts: Refunds	3,593.50	\$ 3,593.50	
Total Receipts Balance on Hand July 1, 1973		\$188,927.03 12,824.75	
GRAND TOTAL NET RECEIPTS		\$201,751.78	
EXPENDITURES			
Local:			
Administration Instruction Attendance Services Health Services Pupil Transportation Operation of Plant Maintenance of Plant	\$ 1,332,14 50,678.92 5.00 870.60 16,307.00 9,858.63 5,901.86		

Fixed Charges School Lunch & Special Milk Student Body Activities Capital Outlay Outgoing Transfer Accounts Refunds	4,496.19 6,192.64 483.86 883.74 78,226.91 97.76	
		\$175,335.25
Federal:		
Title I ESEA Title III NDEA	2,885.05 115.13	
		\$ 3,000.18
Total Expenditures Balance June 30, 1974		\$178,335.43 23,416.35
GRAND TOTAL NET EXPEND	ITURES	\$201,751.78

AUDITORS' REPORT

This is to certify that we have examined the books, vouchers, bank statements and other financial records of the School District of Stewartstown, of which this is a true summary for the fiscal year ending June 30, 1974 and find them correctly cast and properly vouched.

GLENNA D. RANCLOES FABIANA PARKER Auditors

Jnue 30, 1974

DETAILED STATEMENT OF EXPENDITURES

1973 — 1974

ADMINISTRATION:

Salaries of District Officers: Burns, Norma Haynes, Emily Hunt, Evelyn McAllaster, Shirley McKinnon, Louise Pariseau, Theodore Parker, Fabiana Parrish, Marion Rancloes, Glenna	\$ 10.00 150.00 174.00 150.00 150.00 12.00 40.00 10.00 30.00	\$ 726.00
Contracted Services:		
Frizzell, Joyce	100.00	100.00
Other Expenses for		
Administration:	45.00	
Blossom Shop	15.00	
Bureau of Educational Testing	33.33	
Colebrook School Lunch Program	3.60	
Crawford, Lisette	10.00	
Ladd, Floris	22.00	
M/S Printing and Advertising	9.35	
National School Boards Association		
N.H. School Boards Association	125.00	
News and Sentinel	5:25	
Owen, Rita	10.00	
Poirier, Dr. J. L.	30.00	
Postmaster, Colebrook	102.25	
Staff Development Committee	25.00	
Stevens, G. M. and Sons	10.00	
S.U. #7 Local Teachers Union	25.00	
Treasurer, State of N.H.	3.36	
Upper Connecticut Valley Hospital	41.00	

506.14

INSTRUCTION:

Salaries of Teachers: Bibbo, James Carrigan, Sylvia Fisher, Cheryl Gould, Dorothy Gray, Addie McKinstry, Roger Thurber, Stanley	7,870.08 7,316.01 6,200.16 7,300.08 7,249.92 6,649.92 2,000.00	44,586.17
		44,500.17
Salaries of Substitutes: Bartlett, Harry Campbell, Iris Fisher, Timothy Hurley, Virginia Pierce, Paul Richardson, Cleora vonDohrmann, Martha	18.00 50.00 9.00 150.00 450.00 9.00	
		736.00
		,
Textbooks: General Learning Corporation Harcourt Brace & Jovanovich Holt Rinehart and Winston Litton Educational	111.53 161.17 8.28	
Publications	137.22	
Rand McNally and Co.	53.22	
Scott, Foresman and Co. Shawnee Press	24.91 93.48	
		589.81
Library – Audio Visual: Listening Library	91.80	
National Library Service North Country Education	517.42	
Services	121.62	
RCA Music Service	26.72	
Teaching Supplies:		757.56
Teaching Supplies: Central Scientific Company Connecticut Valley Biological	75.66	
Supply	56.10	

-61-

Economy Company General Learning Corporation Globe Enterprises Gray, Addie (Title I Advance) Handy Crafts Inc. Harcourt Brace Jovanovich Heath, D. C. Hicks, P. A. and Son Holt Rinehart and Winston Litton Educational Publications Mainco School Supply Midwest Publications Modern Curriculum Press New Dimensions in Education Psychological Corporation Scott Foresman and Co. Xerox Education Publications	$\begin{array}{c} 281.52\\ 110.55\\ 15.84\\ 350.00\\ 12.90\\ 40.73\\ 18.16\\ 2.28\\ 91.79\\ 107.83\\ 587.44\\ 21.93\\ 17.25\\ 5.67\\ 9.25\\ 145.05\\ 77.10\\ \end{array}$	2,027.05
Contracted Services: Bureau of Educational Testing Carrigan, Sylvia Gray, Addie New Hampshire Network North Country Education Services	5.12 100.00 50.00 85.00 1,218.77	1,458.89
Other Expenses for Instruction: Agency for Instructional Television American Guidance Service Bibbo, James – Petty Cash Fund Biron, Marsha Bryant Company French, Darlene General Learning Corporation Harcourt Brace Jovanovich Heath, D. C. Litton Educational Publicatiions M/S Printing and Advertising McKinstry, Roger – Petty Cash Fun N.H. Music Educators Association N.H. School Boards Association Norwen Crafts Postmaster, Colebrook Schoolmaster Science	22.00 5.15 25.00 12.50 14.88 4.60 16.38 45.10 3.87 3.53 51.87 d 25.00 5.00 10.00 19.80 7.20 44.95	

Thurber, Stanley Vocational Biographies	\$ 200.00 6.61	
		\$ 523.44
ATTENDANCE SERVICES:		
Other Expenses of Truant Officer: Ladd, Gilman	5.00	5.00
HEALTH SERVICES:		
Other Expenses for Health Services:		
Hughes, Carolyn Norris, Dr. Mertrude Parsons, Dr. Marjorie School Health Supply Treasurer, State of N.H.	438.00 7.00 150.20 125.40 150.00	
		870.60
PUPIL TRANSPORTATION:		
Contracted Services:		
Guay, Alex Lynch, F. Robert Nugent Motor Company Placey, Lynne	20.00 1,947.00 9,738.00 4,602.00	
		16,307.00
OPERATION OF PLANT:		
Salaries of Janitors:		
Bedard, Noel Hunt, Evelyn	2,020.00 1,531.20	
		3,551.20
Janitorial Supplies		
Ducret's Gun Shop Hicks, P.A. and Son Holcomb, J. I. Manufacturing Hunt, Evelyn	2.53 73.12 35.96 39.03	

Interstate Restaurant Equip. Parkhurst and Sons Public Service Co. Of N.H. Solomon's Store Thibeault's Gas and Appliance Tri-State Paper Products	\$ 304.73 23.59 7.00 48.69 8.47 335.51	\$ 878.63
Contracted Services:		,
Bedard, David Bibbo, James Ellis, Donald Hebert, Daniel, Inc. Hicks, P.A. and Son Hunt, Evelyn N.H. Labor Dept. Rancourt, Luc Sweatt, Arthur	21.60 33.75 64.00 27.70 1.39 11.25 4.00 21.60 74.50	
		259.79
Heat:		
Colebrook Oil Company	3,460.07	3,460.07
Utilities:		
New England Telephone N. H. Electric Coop. Public Service Co. of N.H. Pyrofax Gas Corporation Rural Gas Service Stewartstown Water District Thibeault Gas and Appliance	427.55 442.75 454.33 15.00 41.55 276.13 51.63	
		1,708.94
MAINTENANCE OF PLANT		
Replacement of Equipment:		
Colebrook School District Hicks, P. A. and Son	57.45 862.62	
		920.07

Repairs to Equipment:

Multi-Media Services N.H. Audio Vue, Inc. Thibeault Gas and Appliance	\$ 16.86 40.59 8.40	
Contracted Services:		\$ 65.85
Contracted Services.		
Brooks Auto Supply Carney, Howard Hamel Brothers Haynes, Keith Hebert, Daniel, Inc. Hunt, Kathy Hunt, Richard Jondro, Roland Interstate Restaurant Equip. Master Security Lock Service Petrofsky, Robert Pryor, L. R. Purrington, Linwood Rural Gas Service Stewart, Fred, Jr. Thibeault Gas and Appliance	$\begin{array}{c} 12.75\\ 382.70\\ 270.00\\ 25.00\\ 1,040.39\\ 131.88\\ 83.13\\ 30.00\\ 78.00\\ 36.00\\ 202.50\\ 450.00\\ 17.00\\ 10.00\\ 54.25\\ 18.00\end{array}$	
		2,841.60
Repairs to Buildings:		
Carney, Howard Continental Chemical Davis, Perley Hebert, Daniel, Inc. Hicks, P. A. and Son Hunt, Richard Ladd, Wayne Master Security Lock Service Parkhurst and Sons Purrington, Linwood Scott's Store	36.75 300.62 1.49 414.85 269.41 16.94 1.50 34.20 894.76 40.76 63.06	
		2,074.34

FIXED CHARGES:

N.H. Retirement System:

N.H. Retirement System	\$ 630.10	\$ 630.10
F.I.C.A.:		
Stewartstown School Lunch Program Treasurer, State of N.H.	92.32 2,859.22	2,951.54
Insurance:		
Varney, Charles W. and Co.	913.55	913.55
Rent of Land:		
St. Regis Paper Company	1.00	1.00
SCHOOL LUNCH & SPECIAL MILK	:	
Federal Monies:		
Stewartstown School Lunch	3,649.14	3,649.14
Local Monies:		
Hicks, P. A. & Son Koch Supplies, Inc. Stewartstown School Lunch Progra Program	16.19 12.55 am 2,514.76	0.540.50
STUDENT BODY ACTIVITIES:		2,543.50
General Support:		
Biron, Marsha - Title I Advance Glenn, Peter	250.00 93.36	
Nugent Motor Company	140.50	
		483.86
CAPITAL OUTLAY:		
Sites:		
Doric Foundations	75.00	75.00

Buildings:			
Interstate Restaurant Equip.	\$ 225.00	\$ 225.00	
Equipment:			
Connecticut Valley Biological Supply Hebert, Daniel, Inc. Humphrey's Corporation Interstate Restaurant Equip. Sears, Roebuck and Company	9.00 260.00 212.00 50.00 52.74	583.74	
OUTGOING TRANSFER ACCOUNT	۲S:		
Tuition - In State			
Colebrook School District Pittsburg School Dsstrict	27,487.88 11,228.00		
		38,715.88	
Supervisory Union Expenses:			
Cummings, Sarah Davis, Perley Dehl, Stephen Supervisory Union #7	38.97 84.41 75.68 9,498.34		
		9,697.40	
Tuition - Out of State:			
Canaan, Vt. School District	25,796.13	25,796.13	
Tuition to Private Schools:			
Austine School for the Deaf Crotched Mtn. Rehab. Center	3,980.00 37.50		
		4,017.50	
MISCELLANEOUS ACCOUNTS:			
Refunds:			
State of N.H.	97.76	97.76	
07			

-67-

FEDERAL PROGRAMS:

Title I ESEA

Biron, Kathy Biron, Marsha Fauteux, Elaine Gray, Addie	\$ 246.98 835.00 250.22 570.00	
Biron, Marsha CTB - McGraw Hill Mainco School Supply Mutual of Omaha Nugent Motor Company Stewartstown School District Treasurer, State of N.H.	23.70 88.33 34.53 33.00 442.00 250.00 111.29	
		\$ 2,885.05
Title III - NDEA		
Listening Library RCA Music Service	91.80 23.33	
		115.13
TOTAL EXPENDITURES		\$178,335.43

In accordance with the laws of 1961, Chapter 189, Section 48, breakdown of the total amount paid to the Superintendent and Business Administrator by the State and respective school districts is as follows:

Superintendent	73-74 Salary	73-74 Travel	Total
State of N.H. Colebrook Columbia Clarksville Pittsburg Stewartstown	\$ 3,500.00 5,455.74 1,388.29 555.32 2,690.12 2,088.53	\$.00 896.00 228.00 91.20 441.80 343.00	\$ 3,500.00 6,351.74 1,616.29 646.52 3,131.92 2,431.53
	\$15,678.00	\$ 2,000.00	\$17,678.00
Business Administrato	:		
State of N.H.	\$ 2,400.00	\$.00	\$ 2,400.00

Colebrook	2,712.19	537.60	3,249.79
Columbia	690.16	136.80	826.96
Clarksville	276.06	54.72	330.78
Pittsburg	1,337.33	265.08	1,602.41
Stewartstown	1,038.26	205.80	1,244.06
	\$ 8,454.00	\$ 1,200.00	\$ 9,654.00

TEACHERS' CONTRACTED SALARIES

1974 - 1975

James Bibbo Sylvia Carrigan Cheryl Fisher Dorothy Gould Addie Gray Roger McKinstry Stanley Thurber \$ 8,165.00 7,940.00 6,448.00 7,700.00 7,700.00 7,006.00 2,100.00

JANITORS' CONTRACTED SALARIES

1974 - 1975

Noel Bedard Evelyn Hunt \$ 2,709.00 1,750.00

REGISTRATION & ATTENDANCE

West Side Hollow Hollow TOTALS:		1-8 1-4 5-8	97 12 18 127 127 EN	IROL	Average 85.6 10.2 16.4 112.2 112.2	1 1 9 	Membershin 88.90 10.50 17.0 17.0 116.5	D 6 7 —	96.37 96.37 96.36 96.39 96.39	
				FALL	, 1974	ŀ				
Grades:	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	Special	Total
West Side:	6	5	15	10	5	13	15	10		79
Hollow:	4	3	1	3	2	7	2	5	1	28
			TU	ITION 1974-		ILS	-			
School:			N	o. of F	Pupils:				Tuition	Rate:
Colebrook A Pittsburg Hi Canaan Men	igh	Schoo		32 16					\$ 1,060 960	
Schoo Austine Sch	bl	_		28					970	

*Balance paid by State of N. H.

723.*

TRANSPORTATION 1974-1975

1

Deaf

Transporter:	Rate/Day	No. of Pu	pils Miles/D	ay
F. Robert Lynch	12.75	6	7	(South Hill)
Lynne O. Placey	22,50	20	60	(Bear Rock)
Lynne O. Placey	19.50	17	45	(Creampoke)
Nugent Motor Co.	29.50	38	58	(Bishop Brook)
Nugent Motor Co.	29.25	72	60	(Piper Hill)
Nugent Motor Co.	10.00	16	16	(High School
				Students)

BUDGET

1975 - 1976

Compared with the Budget of 1974-1975 and Expenditures of 1973-1974

	Amount Expended 1973-74	Budget 1974-75	Proposed Budget 1975-76
Administration: Salary of District Officers	\$ 726.00	\$ 784.00	\$ 784.00
Contracted Services Other Expenses of District Officers	100.00 506.14	100.00 890.00	100.00 1,225.00
Instruction: Salaries of Princi-			
pals Salaries of Teachers Salaries of Sub-	7,870.08 36,716.09	15,271.00 31,738.00	15,471.00 30,388.00
stitutes Textbooks Library & Audio	736.00 589.81	500.00 600.00	750.00 300.00
Visual Teaching Supplies Contracted Services	757.56 2,027.05 1,458.89	715.00 1,565.00 1,300.00	700.00 1,010.00 1,010.00
Other Expenses for Instruction	523.44	502.00	582.00
Attendance Services: Other Expenses of Truant Officer	5.00	20.00	20.00
Health Services: Salaries Other Expenses	.00 870.60	602.00 245.00	2,091.00 394.00
Pupil Transportation: Contracted Ser- vices	16,307.00	22,902.00	22,477.00
Insurance Operation of Plant:		23.00	23.00
Salaries	3,551.20	4,826.00	4,594.00
	71		

Supplies Contracted Ser-	\$ 878.63	\$ 760.00	\$ 920.00
vices	259.79	170.00	140.00
Heat	3,460.07	5,400.00	5,000.00
Utilities	1,708.94	1,750.00	2,100.00
Maintenance of Plant:			
Replacement of Equipment	920.07	400.00	200.00
Repairs to Equip- ment	65.85	350.00	350.00
Contracted Ser- vices	2,841.60	1,500.00	2,080.00
Repairs to Buildings	2,074.34	1,500.00	2,160.00
Fixed Charges:	·		
Teacher's Retire-			
ment	630.10	1,430.00	920.00
FICA	2,951.54	3,913.00	3,195.00
Insurance Rent	913.55 1.00	1,927.00 1.00	1,857.00 1.00
Nent	1.00	1.00	1.00
School Lunch &			
Milk Program:			0.000.00
Federal Monies	3,649.14	2,200.00	3,000.00 3,402.00
Local Monies	2,543.50	3,402.00	3,402.00
Student Body Activities	:		
General Support	483.86	300.00	.00
Capital Outlay:			
Sites	75.00	1,058.50	.00
Buildings	225.00	.00.	.00
Equipment	583.74	358.00	50.00
Outgoing Transfer Accounts:			
Tuition – In State	38,715.88	44,900.00	57,171.00
Supervisory Union Expenses	9,697.40	7,949.00	8,121.00
Tuition – Out of State	25,796.13	30,070.00	39,235.00
Tuition to Private Schools	4,017.50	2,220.00	1,770.00

Miscellaneous Accoun Refunds	sts: \$ 97.76		
Federal Programs: Title I ESEA & Title III NDEA	3,000.18	3,500.00	3,500.00
Totals	\$178,335.43	\$197,641.50	\$217,091.00

ESTIMATED INCOME

1975 - 1976

[•] Balance on Hand, July 1, 1975	\$ 2,300.00
Sweepstakes	2,500.00
Foundation Aid	35,000.00
Child Benefit Services	4,300.00
Title I – ESEA	3,500.00
School Lunch & Special Milk	3,000.00
Total Estimated Receipts	\$ 50,600.00
LESS TOTAL PROPOSED BUDGET	217,091.00
AMOUNT TO BE RAISED BY TAXES	\$166,491.00

Name, Residence and Official Station of Person by Whom Married	Francis Cleveland	Tamworth, N. H.	Darwin Lewis	oustice of the reace Colebrook, N. H.	Rev. Andre Bellefeuille Priest	Colebróok, N. H.	Rev. Frank Kelley Minister	Pittsburg, N. H.	Joanne Carlson	Pittsburg, N. H.	Rev. Richard Moore	colebrook, N. H.
Names of Parents	Clifford Streeter Lorreine Evane	lel		Leia Brockney Lawrence Fournier Alma Duplessie	Stanley A. Gibbs	t	Guy Kenney Elsia Richardson		Gaston Laflamme	p		Elmer Buffington (Ceora Marsh
Place of Birth of Each	N.H.	N.H.	N.H.	Maine	Maine	N.H.	N. H.	л. н.	Canada	и. н.	Maine	N. H.
Age	22	17	50	25	19	18	55	50	20	14	25	18
Residence of Each at Time of Marriage	Tamworth, N. H.	Stewartstown	Colebrook	Stewartstown,	Clinton, Maine	<mark>Ste</mark> wartstown	Colebrook	Colebrook	Stewartstown	Stewartstown	Stewartstown	Stewartstown
Name and Surname of Groom & Bride	Robert Streeter	Rae Ann Dyer	John Richard Noyes	Jacqueline M. Wheeler	Stephen Daniel Gibbs	Pauline Cecile Benoit	Kenneth Kenney	Margaret Kenney	Gaetan Ernie Laflamme	Paula Lee Harwood	Floyd Vernon Ricker	Eleanor Alice Buffington
Date and Place of Marriage	1973 December	Tamworth N. H.	1974 January	Colebrook N. H.	January 22	Colebrook N.H.	January 26	Stewartstown N. H.	February 16	Pittsburg N. H.	March	Colebrook N. H.

VITAL STATISTICS Marriages Registered in the Town of Stewartstown, N. H. for the Year Ending December 31, 1974

April 13	Raymond John Rodrique	Stewartstown	32	Canada	Lorenzo Rodrique Rosilda Vachon	Harry Bartlett Justice of the Peace
Pittsburg N. H.	Annette Anne Marchand	Canada	25	Canada	Bernadin Marchand Noela Disinde	Pittsburg, N. H.
June 22	Wilbert A. Richardson	Stewartstown	60	Maine	Willard Richardson Gladvs Armstrong	Harry Bartlett Justice of the Peace
Stewartstown N. H.	Elizabeth Shallow	Colebrook	59	N. Н.	Dean R. Stickney Ellen Pierce	Pittsburg, N. H.
April 28	Gerard P. Richards	Stewartstown	56	И. Н.	Perley Richards S. Ardes Heath	Rev. William A. Helson Windsor, Vt.
Windsor Vt.	Ellen J. Jordan	Northville, N. Y.	57	N. Y.	Thomas Bills Ruby Halstead	
June 15	Kevin Thomas Hurley	Stewartstown	18	И. Н.	Thomas Hurley Virginia Wheeler	Rev. Richard Moore Colebrook, N. H.
Colebrook N. H.	Sharon Anne Young	Pittsburg	19	И. Н.	Arnold Young Lou Young	
June 29	Bruce Wayne Clogston	Pittsburg	23	И. Н.	Clifton Clogston, Jr. Irma Lord	Rev. Curt D. Fulter Colebrook, N. H.
Colebrook N. H.	Cheryl Elaine Owen	Stewartstown	23	л. н.	Shirley Owen Gertrude Wheeler	
July 27	Bernard P. Carrier	Colebrook	21	И. Н.	Armand Carrier Doris Lavertue	Rev. Gerard Beaudet W. Stewartstown, N. H.
Stewartstown N. H.	Suzanne M. Beloin	Pittsburg	22	Ч. Н.	Alcide Beloin Yvette Maurais	
August 8	Rev. Curt D. Fuller	Colebrook	26	Conn.	Kenneth Fuller Eleonor Seeds	Rev. Kenneth Fuller Williamstown. Mass.
Colebrook N. H.	Louise E. Pariseau	Stewartstown	27	N. H.	Theodore Pariseau Denise Laperle	

-75-

Names, Residence and Official Station of Person by Whom Married	Rev. Edward B. Young Goffstown, N. H.		Rev. Gerard Beaudet Stewartstown, N. H.		Rev. Richard Moore Colebrook, N. H.		Rev. Gerard Beaudet Stewartstown. N. H.		Rev. Gerard Beaudet Stewartstown, N. H.		Rev. Richard Moore Colebrook, N. H.		Rev. Gerard Beaudet Stewartstown, N. H.	
Names of Parents	John Cullivan Elizaheth Allen	Lawrence Clemons Evelyn Schofield	Edward Goodrum Minnie Riff	Laval Rancourt Pauline Laperle	Nelson Hedrick Judy Rosen	Robert Dzombia Beatrice Spicer	James Keazer Marv Peabodv	Roger Mongeau Sandra Keller	Florian Rouleau Gilberte Gilbert	Gaston Laflamme Pauline Lemay	Frank Rancloes Glenna Knapp	John Lynch Betsy Hartwell	Willard Lyons Rita Masters	Louis Bissonnette Louise Lanctot
Place of Birth of Each	И. Н.	Mass.	И. Н.	и. н.	N. Y.	Conn.	Ν. Н.	N. H.	Canada	И. Н.	N. H.	и. н.	N. Y.	ч. Ч.
Age	27	19	25	18	25	32	27	19	19	17	23	17	23	28
Residence of Each at Time of Marriage	Stewartstown	Goffstown	N. Stratford	Stewartstown	Stewartstown	Canaan, Vt.	Colebrook	Stewartstown	Canada	Stewartstown	Stewartstown	Colebrook	Pittsburg	Stewartstown
Name and Surname of Groom and Bride	Irving Allen Cullivan	Darlene Claire Clemons	Edward Ervin Goodrum, Jr.	Jane Clara Rancourt	James Nelson Hedrick	Edith Elizabeth Beauregard	Robert Lee Keazer	Dorothy Claire Mongeau	Mario Henry Rouleau	Sylvie Veronique Laflamme	Rene F. Rancloes	Cheryl L. Lynch	Alex D. Lyons	Alice L. Bissonnette
Date and Place of Marriage	August	Goffstown N. H.	August 24	Stewartstown N. H.	August	Colebrook N. H.	September 21	Stewartstown N. H.	October 19	Stewartstown N. H.	October 26	Colebrook N. H.	November 23	Stewartstown N. H.

4	Maiden Name of Mother	Ora Grover	Lena Fraser Edith Pelletier Elizabeth Losier Amelia Poisson	Mary Tremaine	Emilienne Gosselin Mathilda Valliere Pamela Marcoux Ida Brown	Denise Rancourt	Pearl Wyman	Edla Erickson Emily Fortin Mary Dauphinee
nding December 31, 197	Name of Father	George Robicheau	Lyman McGivney Emergite Morin Richard Arsenault John Poisson	Joseph Langlois	Elzear Croteau Joseph Durant Joseph Bolduc Henry Swain	Guy Placey Jr.	Omer Dyer	Hans Johnson Paul Giguere John Hallamore
the Year Er	Sex Marital Status	S-M	M-M-W M-N-N M-D	Ч Ч	N-W N-W M-W	S-M	M-M	S-M M-M M-M
n, N. H. for 1	Place of Birth	л. Ч.	N. H. Canada Canada Michigan	Maine	N. H. N. H. Canada N. H.	И. Н.	Maine	N. H. Minn.
vartstow	Age Years	69	86 86 84 84	58	66 64 84 84	18	53	72 79
Deaths Registered in the Town of Stewartstown, N. H. for the Year Ending December 31, 1974	Name of Deceased	George Robicheau	Randolph L. McGivney Eva Petit Raphael Arsenault Joseph Poisson	Alfreda M. Langlois	Adrien A. Croteau Roger L. Durant Edward Bolduc Lewis H. Swain	Michael L. Placey	Harry E. Dyer	Henry Walter Johnson Edward Giguere Glenn G. Hallamore
Deaths Regi	Place of Death	lovember 1, 1973 Colebrook, N. H. 974	Stewartstown, N. H. Stewartstown, N. H. Stewartstown, N. H. Hanover, N. H.	Stewartstown, N. H.	Stewartstown, N. H. Stewartstown, N. H. Stewartstown, N. H. Colebrook, N. H.	Colebrook, N. H.	Colebrook, N. H.	Stewartstown, N. H. Stewartstown, N. H. Stewartstown, N. H.
	Date of Death	November 1, 1973 1974	9 17 31	February 26	April 5 12 20 20	May 1		212 27 27

~

Name Maiden tal of Name of ts Father Mother	Russell M. Woodard Harriet Hills Elbridge Hurlbert Elizabeth Gathercole	Eugene Palmer Della Peabody John Caron Rose Lagasse Alfred Forest Unknown	Harry Hunt Mary Heath Henry Woods Olive Blay Nils Nelson Martha Odegaard George Ouellette Marie Maheux
Sex Marital Status	F-W M-M	M-D F-S M-W	M-M M-M W-M M-R
Place e of s Birth	Canada N. H.	нн Т	N. H. Vt. Norway N. H.
Age Years	91 83	r 77 53 72	56 65 93 51
Name of Deceased	Gertrude E. Martin Gerard Hurlbert	Everett Paul Palmer Dora Caron Alfred Forest	Richard T. Hunt Carrie M. Poupart Olaf M. Nelson Margaret L. Howland
Place of Death	Stewartstown, N. H. Lancaster, N. H.	Stewartstown, N. H. Hanover, N. H. Colebrook, N. H.	r Stewartstown, N. H. Littleton, N. H. Stewartstown, N. H. Hanover, N. H.
Date of Death	August 18 28	October 6 26 28	Decembo 15 16 16

200	Name of Child	Sex	Name Name Maiden of Sex of Name of	Maiden Name of Mother	Birthplace of Father Mother	Birthplace of her Mother
Child s Rece	3irth Chuld 1973 Births - Records Received in 1974		Father	Mother	Father	Mothe
Gabri	Gabrielle Valmande Giguere F	ere F	Herve Arthur Giguere	Beatrice Louise Lavigne	л. Н.	Canada
Aaroi	Aaron Brooks Joos	Σ	Dennis Lee Joos	Pauline Mary Prince	N. H.	И. Н.
Etha	Ethan Wade Elliott	Σ	Douglas James Elliott	Sandra Joanne Harris	.н.	н.
Toni	Tonia Marie Mathieu	ш	Roger Andre Mathieu	Catherine Ann Wilson	N. H.	N. H.
Step	Stephen Gabriel Inkel	Σ	Roger Rene Inkel	Monique Fernande Masson	Canada	Canada
Ryar	Ryan Josh Boire	Σ	Jocelyn Anthony Boire	Iola Doris Ladd	N. H.	N. H.
Fran	Franklin Benjamin Pierce	Σ	Paul Leslie Pierce	Diane Etsuko Kaneshiro	Mass.	Hawaii
Daw	Dawn Adelle Placey	ш	Donald Herbert Placey	Lynne Adelle Owen	и. н.	и. н.

Births Registered in the Town of Stewartstown, N. H. for the year Ending December 31, 1974

Date and Place of Birth	Name of Child	Sex	Name of Father	Maiden Name of Mother	Birthplace of Father Me	Birthplace of Father Mother
March 5 Lancaster, N. H.	Aaron Robert Huntley	Σ	Merton Wilbur Huntley	Jennifer Ann Dwinell	Vt.	И. Н.
April 28 Colebrook, N. H.	David John Laflamm <mark>e</mark>	Σ	Gaetan Ernest Laflamme	Paula Lee Harwood	N. H.	Canada
May 29 Colebrook, N. H.	Sharon Marie Rancourt	ш	Richard Reginald Rancourt	Constance Mae Hughes	D. of C. N. H.	И. Н.
June 16 Lancaster, N. H.	Brenda Marie Rancourt	L	Robert Ryan Rancourt	Nicole Pierette Isabelle	л. Н.	Canada
June 18 Colebrook, N. H.	Yolanta Virginia Petrofsky F	L >	Robert John Petrofsky	Monique Virginia Jalbert	Conn.	N. H.
July 8 Lancaster, N. H.	Royal Wellington Bryson	Σ	Charles Wellington Bryson	Mary Ann Paldrack	Mass.	Texas
September 21 Colebrook, N. H.	Mark Allen Woodard	Σ	Ralf Edward Hammond	Doris Renee Riendeau	х . с.	И. Н.
December 5 Colebrook, N. H.	Brian Wade Bissonnette	Σ	Claude A. Bissonnette	Lynn Louise Harris	N. H.	и. н.
December 30 Colebrook, N. H.	Rodney Michael Day	Σ	Dustin C. Day	Betty Jean Owen	N. H.	.н.



- - - - ---



